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2011 2012 2013 12 31 2011
2012 2013 12 31 2009
2010 12 31 2009 2010
12 31
12 31
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

27,019 36,457 34,226 46,424 52,947
(2,754,317)  (3,716,427)  (3,488,998)  (4,732,463)  (5,397,417)

18,274 25,297 24,183 31,604 36,405
(1,862,852)  (2,578,776)  (2.465,215)  (3,221,712)  (3,711,126)
6,395 6,632 6,174 7,787 9,548
(651,906) (676,066) (629,378) (793,807) (973,323)
24,669 31,929 30,357 39,391 45,953
(2,514,758)  (3,254,842)  (3,094,593)  (4,015,519)  (4,684,449)
2,350 4,528 3,869 7,033 6,994
(239,559) (461,584) (394,406) (716,944) (712,968)
)
15 67 21 27 122
(1,529) (6,830) (2,141) (2,752) (12,437)
(183) 122) (143) (138) (116)
((18,655))  ((12,437))  ((14,577))  ((14,068))  ((11,825))
« ) (84) 64 39 ©7) 182
((8,563)) (6,524) (3.976) ((9,888)) (18,553)
2,098 4,537 3,786 6,825 7,182
(213,870) (462,502) (385,945) (695,741) (732,133)
15 4,466 2,480 (2.647) (2,883)
(1,529) (455, 264) (252,811)  ((269,835))  ((293,893))
2,113 9,003 6,266 4,178 4,299

(215,399) (917,766) (638,756) (425,905) (438, 240)

4,584 3,056 3,138
(467,293) (311,529) (319,888)
1,682 1,122 1,161

(171,463) (114,377) (118,352)

0.14 0.09 0.10
14.27) (9.17) (10.19)
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2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
15,117 19,591 19,117 23,566 32,419
(1,541,027)  (1,997,107)  (1,948,787)  (2,402,318)  (3,304,793)
10,608 15,707 15,477 25,990 19,412
(1,081,380)  (1,601,172)  (1,577,725)  (2.649,421)  (1,978,859)
23,638 34,809 41,495 47,024 54,048
(2,400,658)  (3.548,429)  (4,230,000)  (4,793,627)  (5,509,653)
2,715 2,557 2,000 2,570 -
(276,767) (260,661) (203,880) (261,986) )
12,197 12,253 12,000 12,000 12,000
(1,243,362)  (1,249,071)  (1,223,280)  (1,223,280)  (1,223,280)
28,209 28,209 28,209 28,209 28,209
(2,875,625)  (2,875,625)  (2,875,625)  (2,875,625)  (2,875,625)
(27,206) (18,203) (11,937) (7,759) (3,460)
((2,773,380)) ((1,855,614)) ((1,216,858))  ((790,952))  ((352,712))
4,209 14,101 20,840 25,607 31,124
(429,065)  (1,437,456)  (2,124,430) (2,610,378)  (3,172,781)
29 51 76 79 84

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
7,500 5,905 437 11,246 7,246
(764,550) (601,956) (44,548)  (1,146,417) (738,657)
(3.649) (4,012) (4,093) (3.743) (6,581)
((371,979))  ((408,983))  ((417,240))  ((381,561))  ((670,867))
) 45 (581) (624) (3,310)
((510)) 4,587)  ((59.227))  ((63.611))  ((337.,421))
12,059 13,997 9,760 16,639 13,994
(1,229,294)  (1,426,854) (994,934)  (1,696,180)  (1,426,548)
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12 31 2012 -2013
2012 2013 %

100.0% 100. 0% 14.1%
68. 1% 68.8% 15.2%
16.8% 18.0% 22.6%
84. 9% 86.8% 16.7%
15.1% 13.2% (0.6)%
0.1% 0.2% 351.9%

(0.3)% 0.2)% (15.9)%

(0.2)% 0.3% (287.6)%
14.7% 13.6% 5.2%

(G.7)% (5.4)% 8.9%
9.0% 8.1% 2.9%

2012 12 31 2013
2013 12 31 52.9 6.5
14.1 2b/3 5.0
2b/3
19.9 2012 10 1/2
6.6 2013 6.7
OPA-6566
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2012 2013 ()

19,328 39,186 19,858 102.7%

@ 27,006 13,761 (13,335) (49.2)%

46,424 52,947 6,523 14.1%

(1) 2012 2013 12 31
2013 12 31
19.9 102.7 20/3
5.0
2013 12 31 13.3
49.2 2012 10 172
6.6 2013 6.7 2.0
2013
2013
2.0
2013 12 31 36.4 4.8
15.2 2b/3
11.7 OPA-6566 1/2
4.3 2013 2.7

OPA-6566
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2,515 2,555 40 1.6%
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(1) 2012 2013 12 31
2013 12 31
11.8 86.3 20/3
0.1
2013 12 31 2012 10
OPA-6566 172 2013 7.1
46.0 2013
2013
2013 12 31
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9.5 CEO
0.8 0.7
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(4,093) (3,743) (6,581)
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2012 2013 12 31 0.4
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2012 2.4
3.6 1.9 1.3
2013 4.3 1.6
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NOL

2011 2012 2013 12 31 11.1 2.7
1.6 1.6 0.7
2022 2033

50
2011 2012 2013 12 31
12
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2006 12
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FDA
2011 2012
2013 12 31 42.3 2012 12 31 2.7 6.9
1.6
0.4
2013 12 31 11.8 2012 12 31 4.3 57.8
3.5 4.3
2.6
2013 12 31 22.9 2012 12 31 9.3 68.5
5.5

3.5
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OooooOodd
2013 12 31 0.06 2012 12 31 7.8 99.3
5.5
2.0
2013 12 31 31.1 2012 12 31 5.5 21.5
4.3
2009
2012 2013 12 31 23.6 32.4
2012 2013 12 31
2014 13 920 17.72
143.1 2013 12 31
2013 12
5.0 i
LIBOR 1.25 i
LIBOR 1.25 2012 12 31
2012 12 31 5.8
2013 12 5.8
2011 2012 2013 12 31
12 31
2011 2012 2013
437 11,246 7,246
(4,093) (3,743) (6,581)
(581) (624) (3,310)
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2011 2012 2013 12 31 0.4
11.2 7.2 2011 6.3 5.2
2012 4.2 2.4
3.6 1.9 1.3
2013 4.3 1.6
2.6 2.3 2.7
2011 2012 2013 4.1 3.7 6.6
2011 2012 2013 0.6 0.6 3.3
12
2012 12 31 2013
2013 12 31 52.9 6.5
14.1 2b/3 5.0
2b/3
19.9 2012 10 1/2
6.6 2013 6.7
OPA-6566
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12 31
2012 2013 2012 2013

2012 2013 ()

19,328 39,186 19,858 102.7%

@ 27,006 13,761 (13,335) (49.2)%

46,424 52,947 6,523 14.1%

(1) 2012 2013 12 31
2013 12 31
19.9 102.7 20/3
5.0
2013 12 31 13.3
49.2 2012 10 172
6.6 2013 6.7 2.0
2013
2013
2.0
2013 12 31 36.4 4.8
15.2 2b/3
11.7 OPA-6566 1/2
4.3 2013 2.7

OPA-6566
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12 31
2012 2013 2012 2013
2012 2013 ()
13,707 25,537 11,830 86.3%
(€))
15,382 8,313 (7,069) (46.0)%
2,515 2,555 40 1.6%
31,604 36,405 4,801 15. 2%
(1) 2012 2013 12 31
2013 12 31
11.8 86.3 2b/3
0.1
2013 12 31 2012 10
OPA-6566 1/2 2013 7.1
46.0 2013
2013
2013 12 31
2013 12 31 1.8 22.6
9.5 CEO
0.8 0.7
2012 12 31 2.6 2013 12 31
2.9 2012 2013 38.8 39.8
34
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2013 12 31
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OPA-6566
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2010 630 2011
2012 2013 12 31 2011 2012
2013 12 31 166 326 500
21,000
17,000
2015
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2014 13
100,000,000 35,621,959 64,378,041
2,120,055
2014 13
) 35,621,959
2,120,055
434,845
7.18
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2014 13

6,090.00 30,226,052

2009 12 4,200 | 43,876,391 (620,815) | (3,081,243,741)
1,999.50 30,228,051

2009 31 3,225 | 43,879,616 (203,829) | (3,081,447,519)
6,000.00 30,234,051

2009 21 50,000 | 43,929,616 (611,640) | (3,082,059,159)
31,000.00 30,265,051

2009 21 50,000 | 43,979,616 (3,160,140) | (3,085,219,299)
6,200.00 30,271,251

2009 11 10,000 | 43,989,616 (632,028) | (3,085,851,327)
2,500.00 30,273,751

2009 25 5,000 | 43,994,616 (254,850) | (3,086,106,177)
439,603.00 30,713,354

2009 27 136,100 | 44,130,716 (44,813,130) | (3,130,919,307)
10,400.50 30,723,755

2009 10 16,775 | 44,147,491 (1,060,227) | (3,131,979,585)
1,000.00 30,724,755

2009 10 2,000 | 44,149,491 (101,940) | (3,132,081,525)
145.00 30,724,900

2009 10 29 100 | 44,149,591 (14,781) | (3,132,096,306)
6,200.00 30,731,100

2010 30 10,000 | 44,159,591 (632,028) | (3,132,728,334)
31,000.00 30,762,100

2010 31 50,000 | 44,209,591 (3,160,140) | (3,135,888,474)
1,200.00 30,763,300

2010 19 10,000 | 44,219,591 (122,328) | (3,136,010,802)
6,200.00 30,769,500

2010 19 10,000 | 44,229,591 (632,028) | (3,136,642,830)
550,140.00 31,319,640

2010 28 106,000 | 44,335,591 (56,081,272) | (3,192,724,102)
4,350.00 31,323,990

2011 31 3,000 | 44,338,591 (443,439) | (3,193,167,541)
18,770.72 31,342,760

2011 11 18 2,278 | 44,340,869 (1,913,487) | (3,195,080,954)
975.72 31,343,736

2012 29 188 | 44,341,057 (99,465) | (3,195,180,448)
1,822.80 31,345,559

2012 25 196 | 44,341,253 (185,816) | (3,195,366,284)
323.00 31,345,882

2012 22 100 | 44,341,353 (32,927) | (3,195,399,211)
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600.00 31,346,482

2012 11 5,000 | 44,346,353 (61,164) | (3,195,460,375)

1,074.32 31,347,556

2012 11 15 104 | 44,346,457 (109,516) | (3,195,569,859)

53,757.32 31,401,314

2012 12 31 5,204 | 44,351,661 (5,480,021) | (3,201,049,949)

2,400.00 31,403,714

2013 11 20,000 | 44,371,661 (244,656) | (3,201,294,605)

215,029.28 31,618,743

2013 15 20,816 | 44,392,477 (21,920,085) | (3,223,214,661)

1,200 31,619,943

2013 10,000 | 44,402,477 (122,328) | (3,223,336,989)

1,804.56 31,621,748

2013 219 | 44,402,696 (183,957) | (3,223,520,991)

241,330.84 31,863,079

2013 31 10,636 | 44,413,332 (24,601,266) | (3,248,122,273)

143,100,000 174,963,079

2014 13 9,200,000 | 53,613,332 |(14,587,614,000) |(17,835,736,273)

12,000,000 186,963,079

2014 13 3,636,364 | 57,249,696 | (1,223,280,000) [(19,059,016,273)

- 186,963,079

2014 13 | (32,441,604) | 24,808,002 ) [@9,059,016,273)

-(-) 186,963,079

2014 13 10,813,867 | 35,621,959 (19,059,016,273)
2009 24,191,372

186,963,079
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2014 13
20 9,297,372 26.0
@ 1 11,620,654 32.6
10 4,849,828 13.6
26 654,105 1.8
1 9,200,000 25.8
58 35,621,959 100
1
2014 13
1301 Second Avenue, Suite 1900, 11,620,654 32.6
Seattle, Washington 98101
SBI 106-6019 6,196,869 17.4
1-6-1
19
101-8535 1,888,011 5.3
2-9
772-8601 1,515,152 4.3
115
106-6019 1,111,111 3.1
1-6-1
19
SBI 106-6019 374,817 1.1
1-6-1
19
22,706,614 63.7
1 SBI SBI
SBI 21.8
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2014 2

2,460

1,908

¥ 2014 10,250,654 ¥
(1966 10 18 )
L ¥ 67,660 ©
(David L. Lowrance) (1967 10 )
? 51,200 ©
(Hien DeYoung) (1963 )
A ® 2014 20,000 "
(Peter A. Kresel)@® (1943 12 )
Y " 2014 40,000 @
(Glen Y. Sato)(l)(z)(lo) (1959 26 )
N 2014 12,083 ©
(Michael Schutzler)(3)(10) (1962 )
44 2014 _
(Brian O'Callaghan)(l)(lo) (1969 )
(€}
@)
®
“4) 2014 31 60 10,000
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(5) 2014 31 60
(6) 2014 31 60
) 2014 31 60
(8) 2014 31 60
[©) 2014 31 60
(10)
Ph.D. 2002

2002 2006

11 2006 2007 2011
Ph.D.
AAO ARVO
L 2011
Acucela Inc. 2003

Cumberland Pharmaceuticals Inc.

BorgWarner Inc. Icore International, Inc.

2011

DeYong Consulting

CEPTYR, Inc.
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67,660

51,200

20,000

40,000

12,083

CEO 2005
2002 2002 2002
Acucela Inc.

1996
2008
CEO

2011
2011
1994 2003

2009 2011
2006 2009
CEO
1998 11 2006

2004

Senior Professional In Human Resources (SPHR) certification

Certified Predictive Index Assessment Analyst
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A 2007 2005 2014
13 2006
Bristol-Myers Squibb Company
|4 2009 2006 Cooley
LLP 2003 2006 PDL BioPharma Inc.
Protein Design Labs, Inc 1999 2003
Exelixis, Inc.
2003
Intarcia Therapeutics, Inc.
2012 2013
CEO
Livemocha, Inc. CEO 2010 Rosetta Stone 2013
2007 CEOsherpa LLC
1998 2012 Digital Forest Inc. 2008 2010 Talent Spring
Inc. 2003 2007
RealNetworks, Inc. 2003 2004
Monster Worldwide, Inc. 2000 2002
Classmates.com Classmates Media Corporation CEO 2007
FlowPlay Inc. 2010
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2013
Sonrgy Inc. CEO
NPS Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
Covance Inc.
Novartis Pharmaceuticals Corporation

BioPartners Merck Biopharmaceuticals

Bayer
MBA

Century Club

-

2014 13

SEC

NYSE
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Sangart Inc. CEO

Pfizer

BIOCOM Aquavit Biopharma San Diego
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Acucela Inc., 1301 Second Avenue, Suite 1900, Seattle, Washington
98101, Investor Relations www.acucela.com

Investor Relations, Acucela Inc., 2013 Second Avenue, Suite 1900, Seattle, WA 98101

SEC

SEC

S-K 407(d) SEC

(www.acucela.com)
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NYSE
SEC
CEO
NYSE SEC
2013
2014
7,500
2,500
12
2013
2,500 10.33
2012 24
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2013 12 31
2013
(€))
A . - 300,000 300,000
Y 12,500 - - 12,500
10,000 23,168 - 33,168
5,625 - - 5,625
) 13 2012
FASB ASC Topic 718 2013
(@)
2013 12 31
A 20,000
% 40,000
22,500
@
2012 2013
2013
2013 12 31
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2013

CEO

@

@

®
*

®)

4,635

(©)

Q)

©)
)]

CEO

2013

2012

2013

2012

2013

2012

2012

13,991
12,421

2013

485,016

485,000

308,544

289,800

259,512

249,500

36,885

100,000

16,0009

16,0009
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2013

@

2012 2013

329,790

32,495

2013

() @ ®
456,360 - 232,800 804,776 2,015,837
56,654 320,100 107,359 1,069,113
- - 108,453 18,626 435,623
376,801 93,200 89,008 864,899
- - 78,113 17,056 354,681
80,249 17,625 363,374
FASB ASC Topic 718
Acucela
2013
36,885
456,360 1
13,991
2012
56,654 1
4,635
4,635
31,452 456,360
456,360
329,790
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Acucela

2013
30

Acucela

2013

125
6566

2013

2013

125

Acucela
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100%
65% 35%
65% 35%
125
CEO
80
100

oOoOooodn

Acucela

60 35

35

OPA-

125

125

2013

2013
2013
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2013 12 31
2013 12 31
(€D
(@] (©)
10,000 _ 0§ 1.45 2017 28,870 $ 509,556
L 27,000® 40,500 $  4.52 2021 17 _ _

13,580 54,320 $  9.30 2022 24 _ _

40,000<" _$  3.23 2019 28 _ _

11,200® 16,800 $  4.52 2021 21 _ _
€))

(@)
@ 8.333
100
®) 2014 13
17.65
(4) 2007 27 25
(5) 2012 23 20
(6) 2013 23 20
(7) 2009 25
(8) 2012 20
CEO
492,291
60
2014
51
2013 12
2013
36

89/159



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0obDOo0o0oo00boo0gOooo(esoedo1)
oOoOooodn

2013 12
300 180
COBRA 18
18
18
30
12
L
313,172 Acucela
2011
2014 12 13
COBRA
12
263,405 Acucela
12
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2013 12 31
2013 12 31
2014
30,000
2013 12
39,234
532,000
2011 2012 2013
373,000
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oOoOooodn
2002 2012
2014 2014
2014 2002
2012
@
@ ® ©
696,878 7.21 1,332,825
696,878 7.21 1,332,825
2014
2011 2012 2013
217,000 216,000 300,000
FDA NDA FDA
2013 31 18,000
2013
2014
2011 2013 12 31
532,000
18,000 57,000 456,000
1 2013
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CFO

2013
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2012 2013

347,955 26,269 1,820,371 12,500

(35,470,533 ) (2,677,862 ) (185,568,620 ) (1,274,250 )

347,955 26,269 1,820,371 12,500

(35,470,533 ) (2,677,862 ) 185,568,620 ) (1,274,250 )
382
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Acucela Inc. 2012 2013 12 31
2011 2012 2013 12 31
SEC Form 10-K
Form 10-K
38 59
129
40 321 35
32 12 193
SEC
132
2014 28
101.94
4.
4.
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ACUCELA INC.
12 31 12 31
2012 2013
16,639 1,696,180 13,994 1,426,548
6,927 706,138 14,947 1,523,697
5,009 510,617 - -
8,700 886,878 10,262 1,046,108
770 78,494 1,114 113,561
1,521 155,051 1,964 200,210
39,566 4,033,358 42,281 4,310,125
1,143 116,517 1,112 113,357
- - 3,478 354,547
750 76,455 - -
3,895 397,056 1,280 130,483
1,199 122,226 5,548 565,563
471 48,014 349 35,577
47,024 4,793,627 54,048 5,509,653
6,500 662,610 12,000 1,223,280
735 74,926 754 76,863
3,109 316,931 6,579 670,663
2,413 245,981 3,269 333,242
570 58,106 - -
249 25,383 267 27,218
13,576 1,383,937 22,869 2,331,266
341 34,762 55 5,607
2,000 203,880 - -
5,500 560,670 — —
7,841 799,312 55 5,607
52,453
A
2,734 2,051 2,051 209,079 2,051 209,079
B
17,900 13,425 13,387 1,364,671 13,387 1,364,671
C 31,818
11,807 12,988 ) 12,771 1,301,876 12,771 1,301,876
60,000
2012 12 31 11,910
2013 12 31 11,971 3,192 325,392 3,654 372,489
1,965 200,312 2,728 278,092
- - M (714)
(7,759) (790,952) (3,460) (352,712)
25,607 2,610,378 31,124 3,172,781
47,024 4,793,627 54,048 5,509,653
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ACUCELA INC.

12 31

2011 2012 2013

34,226 3,488,998 46,424 4,732,463 52,947 5,397,417

24,183 2,465,215 31,604 3,221,712 36,405 3,711,126

6,174 629,378 7,787 793,807 9,548 973,323
30,357 3,094,593 39,391 4,015,519 45,953 4,684,449
3,869 394,406 7,033 716,944 6,994 712,968
21 2,141 27 2,752 122 12,437
(143)  (14,577) (138)  (14,068) (116)  (11,825)
39 3,976 ©7)  (9,888) 182 18,553
(83)  (8,461) (208)  (21,204) 188 19,165
3,786 385,945 6,825 695,741 7,182 732,133
2,480 252,811 (2,647) (269,835)  (2,883) (293,893)
6,266 638,756 4,178 425,905 4,299 438,240
4,584 467,293 3,056 311,529 3,138 319,888
1,682 171,463 1,122 114,377 1,161 118,352
0.14 14.27 0.09 9.17 0.10 10.19
0.14 14.27 0.09 9.17 0.09 9.17
11,897 11,901 11,964
12,045 12,158 12,355
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ACUCELA INC.
12 31
2011 2012 2013
6,266 638,756 4,178 425,905 4,299 438,240
28 2,854 6 612 @ (714)
6,294 641,610 4,184 426,517 4,292 437,526
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ACUCELA INC.
A B C

2010 12 31
2,734 2,051 17,900 13,387 11,807 12,771 11,894 3,110 1,019 (34) (18,203) 14,101
(209,079) (1,364,671) (1,301,876) (317,033) (103,877) ((3,466)) ((1,855,614)) (1,437,456)
_ — — - — - - 422 - - 422
Q) () @) (-) (43,019) Q) ()  (43,019)
- - - - - - 5 - - - 5
) () (@) (509) ) @) (@) (509)
- - - - - - 18 - - - 18
) ) ) (1,835) ) ) ) (1,835)
- - - - - - - - - 6,266 6,266
) ) @) @) @) (-)  (638,756) (638,756)
- - - - - - - - 28 - 28
() ) (@) ) ) (2,854) ) (2,854)

2011 12 31
2,734 2,051 17,900 13,387 11,807 12,771 11,899 3,133 1,441 ) (11,937) 20,840
(209,079) (1,364,671) (1,301,876) (319,377) (146,896)  ((612))((1,216,858)) (2,124,429)
— — — - — - - 524 - - 524
) (@) ) ) (53,417) Q) () (53,417)
- - - - - - 2 - - - 2
) (@) (@) (204) @) (@) (@) (204)
- - - - - - 57 - - - 57
) Q) Q) (5,811) @) Q) Q) (5,811)
- - - - - - - - - 4,178 4,178
) ) ) Q) Q) (-)  (425,905) (425,905)
- -~ - - - - - - 6 - 6
() ) (@) ) (@) (612) (@) (612)
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A B c
2012 12 31
2,734 2,051 17,900 13,387 11,807 12,7710 11,910 3,192 1,965 - (7,759) 25,607
(209,079) (1,364,671) (1,301,876) (325,392) (200,313) () ((790,953)) (2,610,378)
- - - - - - - - 667 - - 667
(@) Q) (@) () (67,994) Q) =) (67,994)
- - - - - - - - 96 - - 9%
(@) Q) (@) = (9,786) Q) Q) (9,786)
- - - - - - 30 6 - - - 6
(@) (@) (@) (612) (612)
- - - - - - 31 456 - - - 456
(@) Q) (@) (46,485) (@) Q) (=) (46,485)
- - - - - - - - - - 4,299 4,299
(@) Q) (@) Q) (@) (=) (438,240)  (438,240)
- - - - - - - - - o - Q)
) ) ) ) =) (7114)) ) ((714))
2013 12 31
2,734 2,051 17,900 13,387 11,807 12,771 11,971 3,654 2,728 @ (3,460) 31,124
(209,079) (1,364,671) (1,301,876) (372,489) (278,092) ((714)) ((352,712)) (3,172,781)
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ACUCELA INC.
12 31
2011 2012 2013
6,266 638,756 4,178 425,905 4,299 438,240
789 80,431 464 47,300 531 54,130
12 1,223 10 1,019 - -
- - 79 8,053 - -
440 44,854 581 59,227 1,123 114,479
193 19,674 107 10,908 332 33,844
(2,632) (268,306) 2,434 248,122 2,274 231,812
(5,154)  (525,399) 3,551 361,989 (1,562) (159,230)
510 51,989 (1,037) (105,712) (443)  (45,159)
1,057 107,751 (1,949) (198,681) (102)  (10,398)
(1,518) (154,745) 1,315 134,051 2,650 270,141
1,277 130,177 778 79,309 856 87,261
(313)  (31,907) 48 4,893 (264)  (26,912)
(557)  (56,781) 570 58,106 (2,570) (261,986)
67 6,830 117 11,927 122 12,437
437 44,548 11,246 1,146,417 7,246 738,657

(18,433) (1,879,060)  (15,580) (1,588,225)  (23,217) (2,366,741)
14,506 1,478,742 12,163 1,239,896 17,136 1,746,844
(166)  (16,922) (326)  (33,232) (500)  (50,970)
(4,093) (417,240)  (3,743) (381,561)  (6,581) (670,867)
5 510 2 204 6 612
- - (13)  (1,325) - -
- - - - 96 9,786
(586)  (59,737) (613)  (62,489)  (3,412) (347,819)
(581)  (59,227) (624)  (63,611)  (3,310) (337,421)
(4,237)  (431,920) 6,879 701,245  (2,645) (269,631)
13,997 1,426,854 9,760 994,934 16,639 1,696,180
9,760 994,934 16,639 1,696,180 13,994 1,426,548
63 6,422 420 42,815 - -
132 13,456 151 15,393 828 84,406
- - 937 95,518
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ACUCELA INC.

2010
FDA

2008

2b/3

2010 OPA-6566
OPA-6566
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2012 2013
2012 2013 12 31 15
@ (b)
©) ()
2011 2012 2013 12 31 15
(i) (i)
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VSOE
VSOE
TPE
VSOE TPE BESP
BESP
Q)
(i)

Gii)

Q) (i) (i)
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25
48
20 60
2011 2012 2013 12 31
12 31
2011 2012 2013
1.2%-2.1% 1.0% 1.2%-2_0%
6.3 6.3 6.3
—% —h -%
65% 50%—65% 50%
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2014
25 3.50
2013 12 31
2014 13 C
3,636,364
12 31
2011 2012 2013
$ 1,682 $ 1,122 $ 1,161
11,897 11,901 11,964
148 257 391
12,045 12,158 12,355
2011 2012 2013 12 31 2012 2013 12 31
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ooooooo
2011 2012 2013 12 31
2008
Acucela
5
40
40
(i) (ii) 40
2011 40
82.5
JDC
i 55
a. 2b/3 5 2013 12 31
b.
FDA NDA 5
(o FDA NDA 15
FDA NDA 20
e. 10
il 27.5
a.
b. FDA NDA 7.5
C. FDA NDA 10
d. 5
@ 360
® ©)
Money Rates
LIBOR @
Acucela
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2013 12 31
32.4 2013 12 31
1.2
175
Jcc
250 25
500 50
1,000 100
2011
5
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BESP
BESP
2011 2012 2013 12 31 17.8
19.3 39.2
BESP 15
2011 3,890
2011
ASC 605-28
2013 12 31 2b/3
5 2011 2012 12 31
OPA-6566
2010 OPA-6566
OPA-6566
(€D OPA-6566
[®) OPA-6566
©) A2a
2011 2012 2013 12 31
6,689 8,100 1,500
2008
2
2011 2012 2013 12 31
5,869 14,000 12,300
2013 12 31
2012
5
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2013
CEO
CEO
NDA
2012 2013 12 31
2012 12 31
$ 797 $ 1% -3 798
5,969 - 0} 5,967
1,225 - - 1,225
6,500 1 - 6,501
14,306 - - 14,306
528 - - 528
$ 29,325 $ 2 % @ s 29,325
2013 12 31
$ 1,099 $ 1% -3 1,100
12,101 - ) 12,096
625 - - 625
5,235 2 ©) 5,228
12,501 - - 12,501
868 - - 868
$ 32,429 $ 3% 13) $ 32,418
2013 12 31 3,478,000 2012 2013 12 31
12
2013 12 31
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2012 2013 12 31

2012 12 31

1 2 3
$ 14,306 $ - $ - $ 14,306
- 1,225 - 1,225
- 586 - 586
14,306 1,811 - 16,117
528 - - 528
$ 14,834 $ 1,811 $ - $ 16,645
$ - $ 798 $ -3 798
- 5,381 - 5,381
- 6,501 - 6,501
$ - $ 12,680 $ -3 12,680

2013 12 31

1 2 3
$ 12,501 $ - $ -3 12,501
- 625 - 625
12,501 625 - 13,126
868 - - 868
$ 13,369 $ 625 $ -3 13,994
$ - $ 1,100 $ - $ 1,100
- 12,097 - 12,097
- 5,228 - 5,228
$ -3 18,425 $ -3 18,425
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2012 2013 12 31 12 2012
2013 12 31 47 64.2
2012 2013 12 31
12 31
2012 2013
$ 2,374 $ 2,844
1,808 1,812
432 457
4,614 5,113
(3,471) (4,001)
$ 1,143 $ 1,112
2011 2012 2013 12 31 789 464
531
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29 12 2014
3,636,364
$3,250,000 $3,250,000 $5,500,000
2006 29 2006 29 2006 29
2009 31 2010 30 2012 11 30
1.00% 1.00% 1.00%
$1,234,990 $2,015,010 $3,250,000 $5,500,000
2009 31 2010 30 2012 11 30
2010 31 2011 30 2014 28
1.20% 1.05% 0.94%
2010 31 2011 30 2012 11 30
$1,234,990 $2,015,010 $3,250,000
2010 31 2011 30
2011 31 2012 30
1.02% 0.97%
2011 31 2012 30
$624,840 $610,150 $2,015,010 $3,250,000
2011 31 2011 31 2012 30
2013 31 2012 31 2013 30
2012 31 0.96% 0.96% 0.95%
2013 31 0.96%
2012 31 2012 31 2013 30
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$624,840
2013 31
2014 31

2014

31

$610,150

$2,015,010
2012 31
2013 31
0.95%
2013 31

$3,250,000

2013
2014
0.84

30
30

2013 12 31

2011

10

2013 12 31

2012

2014

2011 12 31

3.30

2013 12 31

$2,015,010

2013 31

2014 31
0.84%

12

3,636,364

SBI
63

2,632
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78



2011

2011

2012
2,979

2012 12 31

2013 12
811

31
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12 31
2012 2013
$ 811 $ -
1,625 714
680 -
886 1,077
192 110
365 363
106 124
- 6
$ 4,665 $ 2,394
$ 770 $ 1,114
3,895 1,280
$ 4,665 $ 2,394
12 31
2012 2013
$ 169 $ 575
(2.632) 2,478 2,295
(2,480) $ 2,647 2,870
- $ 34
- (21)
- 13
(2,480) $ 2,647 $ 2,883
1,064
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12 31
2011 2012 2013
34.0% 34.0% 34..0%
(54.1) - -
48.1) - -
- - 3.7
3.2 4.8 2.1
(65.0%) 38.8% 39.8%
2008
IRS 2008
50
2011 2012 2013 12 31
12
2011 2012 2013 12 31
2012 2012 2013
2012 2012
2012 2012 12 31
2013 12 31
11
2015
2013 12 31
2014 910,101
2015 152,051
$ 1,062,152
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2011 2012 2013 12 31 958 849 994
5
LIBOR
1.25 LIBOR 1.25
2012 12 31 2012 12 31
5.8 2013 12
5.8
12
2013 12 31 60,000,000
2013 12 31 52,442,514 2014 13
2,734,334
17,889,998 31,818,182 A B C
A B 0.25
0.75
C 1.10
3.30
A B C 3.50 25
A B
0.75 A B
C
1.10 C
A B C
A B C
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A B C
A B C
50
A B C
2012 12 31 2013 12 31
$ OF -
6 )
$ - $ a
13.
2013 12 31
2,120,055
10
25 1/48
20 1/60
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2011 2012 2013 12 31
2010 12 31 1,099,229 668,979 $ 3.22 354,015
300,000 - -
(423,500) 423,500 5.22
- (3,000) 1.45
99,342 (99,342) 4.35
194,834 (194,834) 2.55
2011 12 31 1,269,905 795,303 4.31 288,988
(253,900) 253,900 9.67
- (5,288) 0.36
204,534 (204,534) 4.64
28,553 (28,553) 4.97
2012 12 31 1,249,092 810,828 5.91 389,440
(110, 250) 110,250 16.52
- (30,219) 0.18
106,517 (106,517) 9.19
87,464 (87,464) 6.90
2013 12 31 1,332,823 696,878 $7.21 412,099
2011 2012 2013 12 31 2.86
3.66 4.64
2011 2012 2013 12 31
9 47 307
2011 2012 2013 12 31 3,124
3,586 10,787
2011 2012 2013 12 31
1,553 2,598 7,437
2011 2012 2013
3.25 5.59 8.09
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2013 12 31
2013 12 31
)
$0.62-$1.45 83,000 2.86 83,000
$3.23-$5.19 314,994 6.40 245,639
$8.24-$22_69 298,884 8.73 83,460
696,878 6.98 412,099
2011 2012 2013 12 31 6.35
5.53 5.94
2011 2012 2013 12 31
1,470 1,771 1,470
3.71 3.58 3.25 2011 2012 2013 12 31
422 482 625
CEO
51
36
2011 2012 2013 12 31
18 57 456
2,278 5,504 31,452
30 786 2014
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14.401(k)
1986 401 (k)
15.
Peter Kresel
Kresel 2011 2012
2013 217 216 288
5 2011 2012 2013 12 31
8.29 6.65
2013 12 31 14.94
SBI 9
16.
2013 10 2014
35 30
2013 12 31
2013 12 31 $ 1,004
38
2013 12 31 966
17.
2013 12 31 2013 12 31
2014 13 9,200,000 17.72 143.1
2013 12 31
2014 13 SBI 2006 12
3,636,364
2014 13 10,813,867
2014 13 100,000,000
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2013 12 31

2013 12 31

1,645,589

1,345,589
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$ 163,000
(13,900)
(500)
(5.500)
$ 143,100
2013 12 31
2013 12 31
2013 12 31
$ 32,419 $ 181,019
19,412 168,012
54,048 197,148
12,000 -
28,209 -
(3,460) (3,460)
$ 31,124 $ 174,224
2014 2014
2009
2014
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18.
2013 12 31
31 30 30 12 31
2012
9,590 9,670 15,881 11,283
313 234 3,562 69
84 63 956 19
0.01 - 0.08 -
0.01 - 0.08 -
31 30 30 12 31
2013
15,980 11,023 14,692 11,252
3,711 (20) 1,420 (812)
999 ) 382 (215)
0.08 - 0.04 0.02)
0.08 - 0.03 (0.02)
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ACUCELAINC,
BALAMCE SHEETS
{in thomsanils)

Decwmber 30,
2013 W12
Assels
Curment asscts:
Cash and cash equivalenis 5 13994 8 16,639
Ivestmenis 14847 6927
Restricted investmenss —_ 5,000
Accounis recgivable from collaboratons with a related pany 10,2602 3,700
Dreferred 1ax assel 14 T
Prepard expenses and alher currenil asséls 1964 1521
Tonal current nsseis 42281 30566
Progerty sl cywipmeil, gt 1112 1,143
Long-lenm investmens 3478 —
Restricted long-1efin investments - 750
Long=-term defermed 1ax assel 1,280 3E05
Deferred offerime costs 5548 1,190
Chher assels A4 471
Toaal asses 5 S4048 8 47024
Liabilities and sharebolders® equity ———
Current lrabilities.
Current maturities of contingenily convertible debi, relaied pamy 5 12000 5 6,300
Agcounts payable T84 1%
Accrued Linbilities 6,579 3009
Agerieed compensation 3,264 2413
Dreferred revenae from collaborations with a relaied party — 570
Deeferred rent and lease incentives 267 2449
Total current lnbilitics 22 8ot 13,576
Commimcnis (Nowe 1]
Long-tenm deferred reni, bease incentives, and oihers 55 341
Long-tzrm deferred revenue from collaborations with a related party — 2000
Long-term contingently convertible debt, related pamy = 5500
Tonal long-rerm Habilities 53 TRl
Sharcholders’ equity:
Convenible prefemed stock, no par value, 32,453 shares authonzed:
Serics A, no par value, 2,734 shares authorized, issucd, and outstanding (liquidation
value of $2.051) 2051 2051
Series B, no par valee, 179040 shores authorized, issued, and outstending
( licquidation vakse of $13,425) 13387 13387
Series C, no par value, 31,818 shares authorized, 11,807 shares issued and
outstanding (liquidmion value of §12.988) 12,771 12,771
Common stock, no par value, 0,000 shares awhorized; 11,971 and 11,910 shares issued
und outstanding &s of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively 364 3192
Additional paid-in capital 2,728 1965
Accumulaed other comprehensive loss n —
Accumulated delici {3,440 {7.730)
Total shareholders” equity 3124 25607
Total liabilitics and sharchelders” equity 5 S48 8 47024

See accompanying notes 10 financial siicments.
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ACUCELA INC,
STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thowsamls, cxcept per share data)

Year Ended
Ekecember 31,
2018 i HIT
Revenees from colkaborations with a relared pary S 52047 § 4642 S 342
Expenses:
Research and development 6405 Al,604 24,153
Creneral and administrative RS T.7RT 6,074
Total expenses 45953 39,301 30,357
Income from operations 904 74013 3500
Oz ineoimne (Expense). net:
Imierest incornme 122 »w 2
Imleres expense {116) (138) (143)
Cnher income (expense). nel 152 a7y £
Total other income (expense), mel 158 {208) (K3)
livcome belore incorme lax 782 6,828 3, 7RG
Income iax benell (expense) (2 R83) (2.647) 2 ARD
Net imcome 4,500 4,178 6266
Net income atiributible o panicipating securitics 3,138 3056 4,584
et income atiributnble to common sharchobders g 116l 8 .12 s 1,682
Net income per share atiributable to common shareholders
Basic s i s i S .14
Diluterd S 09 5 00 5 014
Weighted average shares used 1o compute net income per share atributable to
common sharcholders:
Basic 11,964 11,901 11 597
Driluted 12155 12,158 12,045

See accompanying notes 1o fnancial stacments,
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ACUCELA INC,
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
{im theasands)

Vear Ended December 11
K] BT O
Nel incoime S 420 5 41T 5 6206
Caher comprelensive income:
Met unrenlized gaim (Joss) on securilses (N ] 28
Comprehensive income 5 43 5§ 4084 5 6l

Seg pccompanying notes 10 financial stuements
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ACUCELA ING,
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

{im thoasanils)
Wears Ended
Ihecember 30,
b1 iz 011
Cash flows from operating activities
Nel income 8 430 5 417/ 8§ [l
Adjustments 1o reconcile net income 1o net cash provided by operaling activities:
Dreprecuntian and amartisation 511 464 TR
Amonization of deferred finnncing costs - (1] 12
Loss from the disposal of fixed asscls — TV —
Stock-based compensation 1,123 581 440
Amonization of preminnydiscount on marketable securilics 332 i 143
Deeferred inxes 2374 244 (2.632)
Chinges fin operaing assels and labilites:
Accounis recesvable from eollnborations with a relmed party {1.562) 551 (5.154)
Prepaid expenses and other curment asseis {243) {1L03T) S0
Accounts payable {102y {1.940) 1,057
Acerved libilies 2650 1,315 (1.51%)
Agcrued compensation 56 TT8 1,277
Deeferred rent and lease Incentives (26d) 4x (313)
Deeferred revenue from collaborations with a relaied party (2.570) 70 (357)
Cnher assets 122 1y 67
et cash provided by operating aclivitics 7246 11.246 437
Cash flows from investing activities
Purclases of markciable securities available for sale (23211 {15.580) (18433)
Maturitics of marketable securitics available for sale 17,136 12,163 14,506
Additions 1o propeny and coquipsent {500) (3206) {166)
Net cash used in investing aclivilies (6581 13,743) (4,003
Cash fBows from financing activitics
Proceeds from issuance of common stock ] 2 L]
Restricied invesiments incomse — {13} —
Excess tax benefil from stock-based compensation E — -
Payments for deferred offering cosis (3412) (613) (586)
Met cash used in financing activitics (3,31 (624) (5681
{Decrease) mercase in cash and cash equivalenis (2.645) 6,870 (4.237)
Cash and cash equivalents—beginning of year 16,639 3,760 13997
Cash and eash equivalenis—end of year 5 1394 § 16630 § TG0
Supplemental disclosure
Cush paid for interest 5 — & 41 5 (5]
Cash paid for income taxes E2R 151 I32
Unpaid deferred offering costs 237 — —
Restriction of invesimenis as collateral (5.750) 5780 —

See acopmpanying nobes 1o financial sislements.
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ACUCELA ING,
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1, Summury of Business and Significant Accounting Palicics
fherview

Acucela Inc. (Uwe,” “our” and “us7) is a clinical-stuge biotechmology compamy that specinlizes in discovering and
developing novel therapeutics 1o meat and slow the progression of sight-threatening ophithalmic discases impacting millions of
individusils worldwide. We locus on developing onl products based on our proprictry visual evele modulmion, or VOM,
comgrounds 1o address a vanety of retinal discases, primanly age-related macular degeneration, or AMD, dimbetic retinopathy,
or DR, and diabetic macular edema, or DME, and potentially Stanzardi discase, retinitis pigmentosa and retinopathy of
prematurity. Our product candsdates are designed 1o address the root couse of these discases by reducing toxic by-products and
oxidiwtive dumoge as well as protecting the reting froan light damnge, The visual cyele is the biological conversion of o photon
ko an electrical signal m the reting, Cur approach 1o treatimg and slowing the progression of eye discases utilizes proprictary
compounds that reduce the speed of, or madulime, the visual cyele. We believe that our insight imto miodulating the visoal evele
combined with owr deep expentise in opluhalmic research and development enables us 1o develop product candidates thar, of
upproved, should preserve vision and provide reliel o patients workdwide sulTering from te debalitating effects of multiple eye
discases.

Iin 201060, e reeebved Fast Track desagnation from the LS. Food aind Diug Adnabaistration (“FDA") for einixustal
bydrochlonde (“Emixuoston”), an mvestigational oral ireatment for dry AMD.

I 2008, we and Chsuka Plammaceutical Co., Lid. (“Oisuka™) emered ino a definiive agreement io co-develop
cixustal, our e compound for dry AMD. Emixustal is i Plase 23 clinscal development in ihe Lniced Stes,

Inn 2000, Onsuka and we emered into o delinitive agreemen 10 co-develop OPA-6566, Cisuka’s compound for the
rreatment of glacomg. ORA-6566 has conchided Phise | clineal development, We are curmentby evaluming further
development activies.

Ulse of Extimuafes

The preparitson of Doail stalements in confonmity with accounting principles generally accepted i the Limied
States of Anserica (GAAP") requires imanagensenl 10 inake ¢atimates and assuimptions ths alfeet tie amouins reported in e
financial statcments and acoompanying notes. Actul resulis could differ froan these estimaes,

Cash awd Cask Equivalems

Cash and cash equivalents include all shon-term, highly liguid mrvestmsents with an original omurity of three
mionths or bess at the daie of purchase. Cash equivalents consist of money market funds, municipal bonds, and corporate debr
securities,

Fivesfiments

Ivestments ire composed of commercial paper, comorite debt securities, centificates of deposil, jind govenment-
backed securities, Investmenis with original mauritics longer than eree months and renaining marities of less an one vear
are classified as shom-1erm invesunems. Wi consider our investmems a5 available-for-sale. Available-for-sale securities are
suted il Grir value as of cach balince sheel dite based on marke! quotes, s unrealized gains and losses are rellecied s i nel
swingaiil uinder the cigion of sccumadlated sihier comprelsensive loss, Presndums of discounts arising il scduisition e smonieed
into camings.

We periodically evaliaie whether declines i fair values of our investments below iheir oost ane other-than-
temporary, This evaluation consists of several qualitative and quantistive factors regarding the severity and duration of the
unreilized loss, as well as whether it is more likely than not that we will hold the investment until recovery of iis amorieed
cost basis. Realized gains and losses are calouloted nsing the specific identification method. Realized gams and fosscs and
declines in value judged 1o be other-than-temporary are recorded within ile stziements ol income under the capiion other
INCeAnE (EXpense),
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Restricted Invesiments

Dapringg 200 3 and 2001 2, a portion of our invesimenis were held as collaieral to secure our line of credit. These
investmenis wene classified and valued consistent with our policy for investiments,

Aceonnts Receivable

Ohir accouns receivible, as of December 31, 2003 and 2012, consist of amounts due from our collaborations with
Chisukan (a related party—>See Mote 15), There was no allowance for doubtful acoounts for the periods presented, as we believe
all outstanding amounts will be paid based on our contraciual amangements with Otsuka and history of successful collections
thereunder and collateral 1s not required.

Praperty and Equipment

Property and cquipmem arg recorded a1 cost, less scoumalated depreciation. We provide for depreciation of
cquiginenl on a straighil-hne basis over an stunated uselul life of five vears, excepl leasehold improvemenls which are
wmertieed on a strvght-ling basis over the shorier of the lease term or estiminied uselul life of the asscs.

Expendiiines for maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred.

Lomg=lived assets held for use are subject to an impainment psscssment whenover ovents or changes m
circumstances indicate that the carrying amownt may wol be recovernble. IFthe carrving value is no longer recovernble based
upon e wndiscowmied e cash Rows of the sssel, the amowm of the inparmen s e dilference between the carmying
o and the fir value of the asser. We have recorded no dmpairment charges for the periods presented.

Revenwe Recognition

Chur business strmtegy includes entering o collaboraion agreenwnts with phamuceutical companies Tor the
develapment and comsngrcialization of our product caididates. The temms of the agreements miay Bclede nonrefundable license
fees, funding of rescarch and development activities, payments based upon achicvenent of development milestones, pavinens
based upon achievement of revenue milesiones, of rovaltbes o product sales. We recognize reveninie when four basie criletia
have been met: (a) persasive evidence of an wrrangement exisis; (by delivery has occurmed or services rendered; (o) the eg is
Nxed of detlerminable; and (d) colleetability is reasonably assuned.

Revemse recognized for the vears ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2011 consist of amounts derived (rom our
collaboration agreemens with Otsuka (o related pany—=3ee Nowe 15)

Mulsiple Etemesr Arrangements

Oir collabonion agreements are mulliple element arrazements that must be analyesed 1o idenily the deliverables
included in the sgrecments and delerming il the deliverables qualily as separate units of accounting. Deliverables are
considerad o separme unit of accounting when all of te following criterin are met: (1) the delivered irem las valie 10 e
customer on 4 standalone basis and (i) i te arangement includes 4 gencral right of remrm relative 1o the delivered iem. and
the delivery or performance of s undelivered item Is considered probable and substantially within our control, There are no
righis of retum in our collabosation ogreements,

Amangement consideration is allocated 1o the separate units of accounting bised on their relative selling prices, We
follow a hicrarchy to determine the selling price for each unit of accounting, determining first if there 15 vendor-specific
objective evidence (“"VSOE™) of fir value (the price at which the goods or services are regularly sold by s on a standalone
basis), INVSOE of fair value is not available, third-panty evidence (“TPE") of vendoss selling similar goods or services 1o
similarly situated cistomers on a standalone basis is used to esiablish Guir value, IT neither VEOE nor TPE of fair value exists,
Wi use our best estimate of the selling price (“"BESP™) for that unit of accounting, Our BESP represents the price at which we
would transact if we regularly sold the unit of accounting on a standalone basis,

We consider mirket conditions and entiiy-speciiic faciors when estinuiing the sellug price. Onee the selling price
Tor cach unit of sccouning has been cstablished, the constderation reecived is allocaed among e units of accounting based on
their relative selling price, and the applicable revenue recognition criteria are applicd 1o each ol the scparate units, The amount
of prmangement consideration allocable 1o a delivered itlem that is a separate it of accounting is limited 1o prrangement
consideration that is fixed or determinnble. Paymends thai are contingent wpon the occuwrrence of fiure events that ane not
exclusively within our conirol are excluded from the allocable arrangemend consideration until the contingency is resolved.
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When we have continuing performance obligations, revenuc s recopmized using onc of two methods, Where we arc
ahle 1o estimale the total amount of services under a unit of accoumting and such perfonmance obligations are provided on o
besi-ciToris basis, revenue is recognized using a proponional performance model, Costs incumed 1o date companed 1o botal
expected costs are used 1o determing proportional performance, as this is considered to be representative of the delivery of
ouiputs, Changes in estimates of 1ol expected costs are accounted for prospectively as a change in estimaies, When we canmmnd
ressonably estimute the 1oaal amount of service that is 10 be performed, butl can ressonably estinate when (he perfomance
obligation ceases or becomes inconsequential, a time-based method is used w0 recogniee revenuc. Under the ime-based
method. revenue is recognized ratably over the estimated performance period of the umit of accounting, but not before the
removal of any contingencics. I we conngt reasonably estimme when gur performance obligation either ccases or becomes
inconsequentinl and perfunctory, then revenue is not recognized until we can reasonably estimate when the performanece
obligation ccases or becomes inconsequential and perfunciory. Revenue is then recognized over the remaining cstimated period
of performance. Significam management judoment is required in determining the level of effon required and the period over
which we are expecied to complele our perfonnance obligations under cach unit of accounting.

Suhstantive Milestore Favorenis

O collaboration agreemends contnin substandive milesiones. A substantive milesione 15 defined as an cvent that
meets the following conditions: (i there is substantive uncerminty on the date the amngement is entered mto about whether the
event will be achieved: (i) achievement of the event is bused in whaole, or in part, on either our perfonnince or # specific
outcome resulting from our performance; und (i) achievement of the event results in pdditiona] paymient due 10 us. For a
milestone 1o be considered substantive, the payment associated with our achicvement must hive all of the following
characteristics; (1) relate solely to our past perfonmance; (if) be reasonable relative 1o all of the deliverables and payment terms
i the arrangement; and (it} be commensurate with cither our effort required 1o achicve the milestone or the enhanced value of
the deliverad itemis) as o result of the malestone achigvement.

Substantive milestone payiments are recopuioed as revenue upon achievement of twe oulestone only if all of the
previous conditions are met and the milestone payments are nonrefundable. Determimation as to whetlser a payment mecis the
aforementioned conditions imvelves management 's judgment. 15 amy of the aforementioned conditions are nol met, the resultimng
payment would nol be considered a substamive milestons and, therefore, the resulting payment would be determined 1o be parnt
of the allocoble armangement consideration and would be recopnized as revenue us such performance obligations are performed
under either the proportiomal perfermuance or time-based metlods, as applicable, and in accordance with the policies as
described above.

Deferred Revennre
Adnouils feceived prior 1o satisfving the above reveriie recoEiition crterla are recorded as deferred revenue.
frcomre Taxex

We recognize deferred tax assets and Labilnies for the expecied future tax consequences of evenis that have already
been recognived m the financial statements or tax retums. Excess tax benefits associmed with stock option exercises and other
equity awards are credited 1o stockholders’ aquiry. Deferred tix labilines and assets are based oni the difference berween
financinl statement corrving amoums and the tax basis of assets wd Jiabelivies, opermting loss, and wx credil carryforwards and
are mesxsured using enacied tax res expecied 1o be in effect in the years the differences or carry forwards are anticipaied 1o be
recovered or gettled. A valuation allowance iz establihed wisen we belbeve that it i more Hikely than oot tha benelis of the
deferred mx assets will not be realiecd,

Stock-Based Compensation

Steck-based compensation expense 15 measured a the grn dare based on the estimmed Gir value of the equity
wwird aind B recopiiaed as expense, less cimured forledires, on a strghi ling basis over the requishie service period, which is
generally e vesting peried. Equily swards 10 nonexecutive eniployvees generally vest asd beconw exercisuble over a four-vear
peirod, with 25% vesting afler ong vear and 148 veatiing each mont thergaller, Equity dwards 1o execalives gencrally vest and
become exercisable over a five-year period, with 20% vesting alter one vear and 1760 vesting cach monih thereafier, The fir
vinhie of cach equity award is cstimated od e date af grand using e Black-Scholes oplioa-pricing model. Dewsinining the Gaie
vithie of stock-based awards at the grant die requires judgment, mclding esunmting the expecied volanliny of our stock,
expecied werm, risk-free merest rte, and expested dividends,

Expwcted Torm
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The expected term used in our option-pricing model represents the period that owr siock-based swards are expected
to be outstanding and is determined based on the simplified method, The simplified method uses a simple avernge of the
vesting and original comraciual terms of the option. We usc the simplificd mcthod 1o determine the expocied option Lenn, since
our stock oplion cxercise expenence does not provide a reasonable basis wpan which to estimate the expected option tenm

Expecred Flaiitiny

The volatility fctor wsed in our option-pricing model is estinuted vsing compamble public company stock
volsility.

Expeesed Dividend

We have never paid cash dividends and hive no present intention 1o pay cash dividends in the future. Accordingly,
the expected dividend wsed in our option-pricing model is zcro,

Risk-Free Interest Rate

Wi buse the nsk-Tree interesi rale used in owr eption-pricing model on the onplied yield curently availsble on LS.
Treasury isswed with an equivalent term. Where the expected tenn of our stock-based awards does nol correspond with the 1erm
for which an interest rate is quoted, we perform o straight-line incrpolation to determine the cie from the available term
muturities.

The fzur value of stock options gramted for e vears ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2011 was cakoulnted usimg
the Hlack-Scholes opiron-pricing model and apphed the following assumptions:

Years enided December 31,

FIIT] 2012 2001
Risk-ree inferest rfes 1.2%=2.0% I 1L.2%=21%
Expected life 6.3 vears 6.3 years 6.3 years
Dividend vield —_ % — % — %
Expecied volatility A% SP-065% 65%

Research and Development Costs

Research and development costs include salarics, foes paid 1o cxiernal serviee providers misd comiragt research
organieations 1o conduct research and development activities, laboratory supplics, license fees, consulting fees, and travel.
Research and development costs are expensed as incurred,

Deferred (fering Costs

External costs we incurred directly antributable o a fulure public offering, are deferred and recorded as noncurrent
assels and were offsel againsi the proceceds of the 2014 initial public offening.

Mie 2, Net Income Per Share

We compute net income per share using the rwo-class method required for participating securitics, Our panicipaling
securities include all series of our convertible preferred siock, as the holders are entitled fo pariicipate in any dividends prior
and in preference to dividends declared or paid on the common stock, Undistribuied camings allocated to these participating
securiiies are subtracied from pet income in determining et income atirbutable io common sharcholders,

Basic net income per share is calculaied by dividing net income atmbutable 1o common shareholders by the
weighted average mumber of shures outstanding for the period. Diluted net income per share is calculoed by dividing net
incoane stiributable fo conmmon sharcholders by the weighied average numiber of shares of the common stock outstanding und
other dilutive securitics owlstanding during the peried. The patential dilwive shares of our coommon stock include the exercise
of outsiandimg stock options than are dilwtive. Dilutive seourities in our diluied EPS calculmion do not include our contingently
converiible debt, which ure convertible upon the occurrence of a qualified initial public ofering of a Leas) S25 000, (860 und
53_50 per share, as defined in the contingenily convertible debt agreement. As of December 31, 2013, such an event has not
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occurred and accordingly the holders of the contingently convertible debt had no nghis to our undisiribiied camings. At the
time of our 1PCY in February 13, 2114, the contingently convertible debt converted mia 3,636,364 commaon shares, after an
intermediate conversion inke Serics C preferred shares.

The following iables reconcile the numerator and denominnior used to caleutate dilvied nel income per share for the

periods presented (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
FITE] HIH 2001
Numnenor,
Nat incomne atiributable o comonan shareholders 5 1161 § 1.122 § 1 6E2
- ¥ 8§ ]
[enomimator:
Weighted-avernge shares oulsunsding—basic 115464 11,01 11,897
Dilutive eiect of stock options 391 257 145
Weighted average shores oustanding—diluted 12,355 12,158 12,045
& ____________§ |

There were no anlidilutive oplions 1o purchase shares of common stock oatstanding for the periods presented.

Nute 3. Concentration of Risk

Dwerimg the vears ended Decomber 31, 2003, 200 2, and 200 | and as of December 31, 2003 and 2012, all of our
revenues and sccoums receivable, respectively, were derved from the collabartion agreements with Otsuka.

Nute 4. Segment Reporting

We aperate m one segment, pharmsecutical product development. All of our sigmficant assets are locwed o the
United States. During the yeors ensed December 21, 2003, 2002, and 2011, all revenue during the year was generated in the
United Seaites.

Note S, Collaboration and License Agreements
Emivustar Collaboration

Iy 20088, we entered it a defmitive agrecment wath Cisuka to co-develop and commeraalize cmixustsl, our
compaund, for the dry form of AMD and for other potemtinl indications i the Unated Stnies, Canada, and Mexico “Shared
Temiton" ). Under Use agreerent, we retained all riglis b Evrope, Soath Amenca, Central America, the Caribbean, aid Al
(“Acuceln Territory™), and (hsuka ncquited the exclusive development and commencialization nghts to the compounsd in Asia,
the Middle East, and selecied markets in the rest of the world ("Ousuka Territory™). Cisuka paid ws o S500.000 fodwe fmdable
up-froat leense foe upon i1s entry inlo the agrecment.

Llnder the agreenent, Chsuka agreed to Desd all development activities in the Shared Temitory through Phase 2, up
10 S0, 000,048, 17 the Phnse 2 development costs excoed 40,000,004, Onsuka could hivve, a1 its sole discretion, citler
(1) termimated the agreement or (i) continued the agreement and share equeally with us all Phase 2 development costs in excess
of S540.(00,000, In 201 1, the cost of development activities exceeded S80,0040,000 and Chsuka agreed 1o cantimee the
agreement and equally share developmeni costs with we, Phase 3 costs are to be shared equally by Odsuka and us under the
agreement, In addition, under the agreement, we have the poteminl o receive development milestones totaling SE2, 500,004,
Ihe co-development poriion of ihe agreement is governed by a Joini Dievelopmeni Comnminize (™), We may eam
development milestongs as follows:

i Initial Indication—S55 (0KL000

o S5000,000 upon initiation of a Phise 2003 clinical irial in the United Sunes (received in the vear
eniling Decenmber 31, 2013)
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S5.000,000 upon initiation of a Phase 3 clinical trial in the United Siates, or the filing of a New Drug
Application (“NDA™) with the FDA in the United States. if a second Phase 3 clinical trigl is not
necded

S15, 040, 0600 wpon Tiling of a NDA with the FDA in the United Siates
S20,000, 000 upon receipt of upproval by the FDA of an NDA in the United States

S 10 000,000 upon recepl of opproval by the regulatory auihonty of a marketing approval
application in Japan

i, Second Indicalion—§27. 500,000

a.

b
€.
d

S5 01, 000} wpon initiation of a Phase 3 clinical trial in the United States

87500, 000 wpon [ling of an NDA with the FDA in the United Sates

S 10000 DD wpon receipl of approval by the FDA of an MDA m the Uniled States

55.000,000 upon receipt of approval by the regulntory authority of a marketing approval opplication
in Japan

Unaer thie agreement, Otsuki will fund our share of the Phase 2 and Pliase 3 development cosls in the form of a
secured promissory note. The promissory node provides that (ah mterest will accrue daily and be calculaed on the basis of 360
diys per year imal be payable on all anwouwnls advanced o us frean ithe date of sdvance witil paid in fll; (b) wpaid inferest will
comgounid annually; and {c) the applicable interest mie will be adjusted quarterly to reflect the thenseMective rate equal to e
three=monih Londen iterBank Offered Rate (“LIBOR") o the “Money Rates™ cohonn of The Wall Street Jounial as of the first
business day of cach calendar quarter, plus 3%; and (d) all amounts are payable in U.S, dollars. The agreement includes o
secunty miercst agreement that grants Msuka a first prionty imlerest on our mlerests in ped profits and rovalty payments, and on
our interests i ownership of the related collaboration compounds and collaboration products and the underlving miclleciual
property righis, bodh i the Shared Ternitory and the Acuceli Ternibory.

Thie loan is repayvable only in the event that proceeds are generated by any future product sales under (he
collaboration agreemen or by e sale or license of collaboration compounds and collaboraion producis developed under the
wgreement outside Nocth Amenica and Oisuka’s sole wimiloy,

As the agrecment contiins elements of funded development, we evaluated the agreement to determine if our
obhigation 10 Osuka under the secured promissory vobe slould be accounted for as a labiliy 1o repay a boan or a5 an obligaton
to perlorm conimehial services. To conchude Mt o labelity 10 repay 2 loan does not exis1, the trmsler of the financial nsk
wnvedved with reseanch and development froan us to Clsuka muost be substantive and genuime. We have detenmined that our
obligation i Oisuka should be accounied for as an oblignion 10 perform contmctzal services because repayment depends
sodely on the nesults of developowen having [uture econoanic benefit, Consequently. amounts received from Osuka for our
share of development costs under the agreement are recognized as revene. Through ihe year ended December 31, 2003, we
had recoqimned revenoe of approximate]y 532,400,000, which is contingenily repayable as described above. As of
December 31, 2013, the contingently repuyable funding has secrued 51200000 of interest, which is comingently repayable

along witly the above,

Llpon commercinlization, we ity SXercise our oplion o co-promale in the Slored Territory an a country-by-country
basis. In markets where we opd 10 co-promale the praduct, Otsuka and we equally share all expenses and profis from sales of
the product in the Shared Territory, 15 we do nol elect (o co-promote in & country or couninies in the Shased Terriory, (suki
shall pay us rovaltics on the anmal aggregate nel sales of collaboration products in the country of counries in the Shared
Temitory for which we did no1 elect to pamicipate in co-promadion, Each party shall pay the other pany a rovalty of 2% on
anmzl aggrepare net sales of collaboration products in their sale terrilorics, In addition, we hove the potential g0 reeeive net
sales milestongs waaling 3 175,000,008, The co-prosmoetion arrangemen is governed by o Foint Commercialization Commities
(“JCC™). The milestones are as follows:

i Al Indicaions
i 525,000,000 upon reaching S250,000,0000 in aggregnie anmal worldwide sales of all collabosation
products
b, SSOLO OO0 aipon redching SSO000. 00 in aggregnie anmial warldwide sales of all collabasation
products
€ STO0000,000 upon reaching 51 ,000,000,0040 in aggregate anoual worldwide sales ol all
collaboration prodiscts

Thie mgreemment abse includes i aee-vair reseanch progrnm (the “Ressarch Progrm ™), e purposs of which was io
idamily 4 secoid indication for the lead collaborative compound and 1o conduct developisent o a backup compoind fog the
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collaborative compound. During the three years of the Rescarch Program, which ended in 2001, Owsuka paid us §3 000,000 per
vear, payable on a quarterly basis. The agreement also provides Oasuka with a right of [irst negotiation to license new
compounds discovered or developed by us (independent of the collabaratiion activities) during the agreement lermn.

Our apreement with Otzaka is a multiple clement arrangement, and we have dedermined that the elemenis within ihe
arrangement consist of the licensce, the Research Program, and research and development services.

Thie license pruoted o Chsukn was determined 1o be o separmie unit of wocounting because it has value (o Otsuka on
u stmdalone basis. Beomse Oisuka may license wd develop the imcllociu property independent of the development or
rescarch program services that are 1o be provided by us, we conducted a net presemt value valumion of the license, and it was
determined that the estimated standnlone selling price for the license at inception of the agreement exceeded the arrangemend
considerstion reccived for the license fee. Since the value assigned to o delivered elemem connot exceed the armngenmient
consideration, the anmngement consideration of 55 000,008 due and paid upon cxecution of the agreement wis assigned 1o the
licemsc.

We luve determined that the activities associated with development meet the critenion for a separate unit of
scooumting. since these servicss luve value 1o Otsuka on a standalone basis. BESP is based on the Company s analysis of the
vilue of the services provided and consideration of the fees charged by third party vendors for similar development services
and represent our BESP. Revenue from development efforis is recognized as services are performed. In the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 200 1, we recognized S35 300,000, 515 300,000 and 517 800,000, respoctively, of revenue
nszocmied with development activitics.

W have determined that the activities associpted with the Research Program meet the criterion for a scpansle unit of
rcommting, since these services have value 10 Orsuka on o standalone basis. The fypes of services comtemiplaled under the
Besearch Program way be performed by a third party, We have determioed thag e fees charged for Uwe research services e
comgsetitive with the price other third=party vendoss charge for senilar research services. Our BESP of the sclling price for the
Research Program was 315,000,000, which equals the spreement consideration. Revenue from the rescarch sctivities wis
recogniced wnder o proportional performance model. In 2011, we recopnized 53,890,000 of revenue associaled with rescarch
aetivitics. The rescarch period ended during 2011,

We evaluated the developmient and net sales milestones in the arrangement and desennined that they cach meet the
eriteri of 4 milestone under ASC 60528, Reverie Recormilion-Milestone Method, We recognize coisideration (sl is
cottingenl upon aclaevensent of a substantive milestone i its entirety in the period in which the milestone is achieved. During
the vear ended Decamber 31, 2013; we received and recopnimed as revenue the 55 000,000 inilestone payvine associated willi
the mitintion of the Phase 2b/3 chinical trial. No development or net sales malestones were achicved during the vears ended
December 3, M2 or 2011,

(PA-6566 Collabaration

Ins 200 0, Oesukn and we emered inlo a definitive agreement 1o develop OPA-G366, Orsuka’s proprietary compound
for the reatment of ghnscoma, The agreement gramis us an opt=in right 1o co=develop and co-promoate OPA=6566 in 1he Unined
States. Uniil we exercise our opl-in right, Ousuka will lave responsibility for directing development activivies and costs. Upon
our exercige of the opt=im right, Oisuka will grant us addsional apt-m rights, which mclude: {1 the right 1o co=develop and ¢o-
praanote OPA-G566 for ophithalmological indications in the Unied Stmes other than for glavceana; (2) the nghe 1o co-develop
i co=prosnote new formulmions of OPA=G36G6 for glascong i the Unied Stes: and (33 nghit of firss negolianod o oo-
develop and co-promate other adenosime A2n receplor agonist componnds for the rreatment of ophibalmologic diseases in ihe
Linired Suates.

We cvaluated the agrecrment and determined tiat the develapment activities under the agreement represented the
only deliverable under the arrangement, Revenue from development activitkes is recopnized ps services are performed, During
the vears ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, we recognized S1,500,000, S8, 100,000, and 56,689,000 respectively, of
revenues in performunce of the agreement.

Rebamipide Collabaration

In 2008, Orsuka and we emered into a definitive agreement 10 co-develop rebamipide, Otsuka's proprictary
comgound for the treatment of dry eve. Under the agreemem, the parties agreed 1o collabormate in the climical development
cl¥oris for rebamipide in ihe United Siies. Otsuka padd us a S2,000,000 up-Trong pavment and, under e agreement, we bad the
potemial @ ceceive clinical developosent mibestones and rovalties om nel sables of (he proghect in the United Stanes and the
European Unson. Under the agrecment, Disuka was responsible for all clinical development and commercialization expenses.
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We evaluared the agreement and determimed that the clinical development sctivitics represented the only deliverable
under the armangement. Revenue from clinical development effors is recopnized as services are performed. During the years
cnded December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2011 we recognized 512, 300,000, 514,000,000, and 55 869,000, respectively, of revemse
associaied with the rebamipide clinical development activitics. We evaluated the development milestones under the agreemient
and determined that they each meet the criteria of a subsiantive milestone. We reeopnize consideration that is contingent wpan
achievernent of & substantive milestone in its cutirety in the period in which the milesione is achieved. No developanent
milestones were achicved during the year ended December 31, 2003, In 200 2, we received and recognized as revenue the
55 000,000 milestone payment associated with the initiation of the Phase 3 clinical tral.

In September 20013, isuka elected o end its rebamipide co-development agreemient with us, As a result, we
recognized as revemse, in the year ended December 31, 2013, a 52,000 006} gpiront payment from Otsuka that had been
deferred due to refund provisions. These refund provisions expired with the end of the co-development agrecment.

Cantivned Tmvolvement af the CECR

The Company’s two remaining collaboration srrmeements with Otsuka require the continuing involvement of our
CEQ, Dr Ryo Kubota. In the event of the departure of Dr. Kubota from the Company or a change in his role or responsibilities
with the Company, the armangements are subject to termination, at the option of Otsuka. For each agrecment, this provision
expires upon the approval of the NDA for the first indication in the United States.

Nue 6, Investments wnd Cash and Cash Eguivalenis

Investments and cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2003 and 200 2 conseted of the followmg (n

thousands):
Devemilier 31, 2003
Liresa Unrealloed
Amoriboed Bulding iBokding Fair
Canid tralns Tarunes Value
Types of secunty:
Commercial paper § Lo S I 5 -5 1,100
Corporate debt securities 12,101 _ (4} 12 4036
Municipal bonds 625 —_ —_— 625
Cenificutes of deposit 5335 2 {9) 5228
Money marker funds 12,501 — - 12,501
Cash R — — RiR
5 1240 & 38 (13 8 F2AIK
hecember 31, 2003
Ciroms Unrealiced
Amoribred Mulding Flulding Fair
Lt tialns iy Valuw
Types of security:
Commercial paper L 707§ 1 8 5 ToR
Corporate debt sccuritics 5000 —— 2 5007
Mumcipal bonds 1,225 - — 1,225
Centificates of deposit 6.500 I — 6,501
Monecy marker funds 14,306 - — 14,306
Cash 528 —_ E— 528
5 19315 5 2 3 2y 5 238

As of December 31, 2003, 33,478,000 of certificines of deposit muature in greater tum one year, but less thim two
wears. All other investment securitics held at December 31, 2013 and 2002 mature witlin 12 moaths,
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Market valucs were determined fior cach individual sccurity in the investment portfolie. The declines in value of
cerain of these investments are primarily related to changes in interest mtes and are considered to be temporary m nature. We
evaluate, among odher things, the duration and extent to which the fair value of @ secunity is less than ils cost, the financial
condition of the isswer, and our intent to sell. or whether it is nsore likely than not we will be required to scll the security before
recovery of the amoenized cost basis. We do not consider these imvestments o be other-than-tempoerarily impaired as of
Docembser 31, 2003,

Note 7. Fair Value Measurements
Fimancial assels are classified and disclosed in one of the following three calegorics:
Lewvel 1—uated prices m active markels for identichl assets and labalities,

Lewel 2—Inputs other thun Level | that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar
asscls or liabilities; quoded prices in markets that are not getive; or other inputs that are observable or can be
cormoborted by observable market data for substatially the full term of the assets or hiabilites, and

Level 3—Unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data available, which roquires us to develop our
OWT ASSUIpLons.

Ot Mnancial assets measured at fair valee on o recurrimng basis as of Deceniber 21, 2013 and 2002 were as follows

(in thousands):
Ehecemnbber 31, 2003
leveln vl 2 Hevel 3 Tutal
Cash equivalenis:
Money marken funds & 12,501 8 - § — 5 12,501
Municipal bonds — 625 — G625
Toutl cash equivalents: 12,501 2% —_ 13,126
Cash BhE - — hE
Total cash and cash equivabents: § 133890 % 625§ — -5 13 g
Iivestments:
Commercial paper & — £ 1.l § — % 1100
Corporate debl securilies — 12087 — 12,007
Centificates of deposit — 5226 — 5228
Total fvestmers 5 — % 18425 5§ - § 15425
L& ___________§ &8 ]|
December 31, 2002
Lavel 1 Ll 2 Level ¥ Toisl
Cagh equivilenis:
Money muarker hunds L 14306 S — 5 — % 14,306
Municipal bonds — 1.22% —_ 1,225
Corporale debl securitics — ARG — LT
Total cash equivalents: 14,306 1.&ll —_ 16,117
Cash 528 — — Lrd ]
Tiotal cash and cash equivabenis: 5 1488 5 LEIl § — 5 16,645
lnvestmenis;
Commercial paper t — 8 TR § —h THR
Cormporate debt securities — 5381 — 5381
Centificates of deposit — 6,501 — 6,501
5 — 5 12680 § — % 12 60
—_— —_—
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Chur level 2 financial sssets include government-backed securitics, municipal bonds, commercial paper, corporate
diebi secumties, and certificates of deposits. These level 2 financial assets are valued using pricing models that consider the most
relevami observable inputs available for similar sccurities, including swch items as reporicd tmdces. broker/dealer quotes, bids,
offers, and yields.

The carrying amounis reflected in the balance sheets for accounts receivable and accounts pavable approximate fair
vithue due fo their shorl-tenm nature.

We hnd 512,000,000 of comingenily convertible debt with o related pany owistanding as of Diecember 31, 2003 and
200 2. At December 31, 2003 gnd 2002, the fir value of the notes payable is 564,200,040 and $47, 000,000 respectively, Our
vithuation unalysis was prepared using a iwo-step process that mitially estimated the fair value of the entire company, using a
discounted cash Mow model, and next allocwted this value to the varions debt mnd equity securitics we have issued. Villue was
allocated to the contingently convertible debt as the result of the preferences and conversion features of the notes under our
valation model of the Company, which is based on the Black-Scholes option pricing model. This model considers overall
vithue of the endity, liquidation preferences, misk free mies, volmility rates of peer companies, and lime 10 a conversion event.
Chr vahmtion of the contingently convenible debt is considered 1o be Level 3,

Note 8, Property and Equipment

Property wd couipmcnt as of December 31, 20013 and 2002 consist of the following (in thousands):

[kerember 31,
181 iy
Labormtory equipment 5 154 5 2374
Leasehold mmproverncnis 1.512 1 #008
Oiifice fumiture and equipment 457 432
5103 4614
Less peeumilated depreciation and amonization [ERLT 3471
Progery and cquipment, ngl § 1112 5 1.143
———— i —————

The depreciation and mmorization expense recorded for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2012, and 2011 was
S531.000, S464 000, and 5750000, respoctively,

Nie @, Contingently Convertible Debit with Related Party

Om May 29, 2006, we completed a private placemeni of unsecured promissory notes in an aggregme principal
et of 12,000,000, Ag the wme of our 1PCHn 2004, the contingently comvertible debt comverted into 3,636,364 comman
shares, aiter an miermediaie conversion o Series C preferred shases. The terms of ihe inktial swance and subsequent
exlensions of these nowes 15 outlined as follows:
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Principal 31 250, Wk 83,250 (0K} 25 50, (W1
Issue [dnie Moy 26, 2006 Moy 20, W6 Moy 3, 2006
Muhmly Ceate August 3] 2004 June 30, X0 November 30, 2012
Interest Rale 1.7 1P 1R
Interest Paywhle Upon Matumiby Upon Maturly Upon Matarity
First Extension
Prinsipal 51,254,990 I 52,00 5000 53,250,000 55,5000, CHRD
Fssue ate August 31, JE Jume 30, 2 Nowember 30, 2002
Mofunly Date Augusd 31, 2010 June 301, 2001 Februory 38, 2014
Interest ol 1.0 1.05% 0.9:4%
Intcrest Payable sl therough Atgust 31, 2000 Faidl through TPaid through
June 30, 2000 | Novemsber 30, 2002;
Ulpon Maturity
Second Extension
Prineipal 1,254,090 S2.005000 53,250 (MY
Fssue Dinte August 31, 2000 June 30, 2001
Muatunty Dratc August 31, 2011 June 30, 20002
Interest Bole 1.02% 1 K
Interest Mayable Praad throdsgh Amgaist 21, 2001 Faid throuigh
June 30, 2012
Third Extension
Prmeipal L T S0 1500 52,005 nEn £1 250 00Ky
Issue Dabe August 31, 3011 August 31, 2011 June 30, 2012
Maturty Date August 3], 2013 August 31, 2012 June 30, 2003
Intcrest Kl 0% through Angust 31, 2012, [ 0.55%
0.96% through August 31, 2013
Intcrest Payable Pad through Augist 31, 2002; Pawd through Paid through
2ol year prepad at Tirst anniversary | August 31, 2012 June 30, 413
Fouirth Extension
Prmaipal 5624 B0 I 5610154 52,015.000 51,250,000
Issue Date August 31, 2013 Augusl 31, 2012 June 30, 2013
Manimly Dhate Anguist 31, 2014 Auguist 31, 3013 June 30, 3014
Enterest Rabe 0849 through August 31, 2014 0955, 0.5
Interest Payable Upan Matunty Paid threugh Uprom Matusily
Augusl 31, 2013
Fiflh Extensacn
Prineipal S2.005.000
Besuie Date Anigusl 31, 2013
Maniraty Dane August 31, 2014
Interest Rals 0,84%
Interest Payablc Uy Manurity

Contingently convertible debt dug in one year or less of 512,000,000 and cormesponding interest payable of $78,000
have been classified as currenl natunties of contingently convertible debt and current liabilities, respectively, as off
Decomber 21, 2002, The moles conlained provisicns for mitomatic exicnsion,

The coningenmly convertible debi was automanically converted imae 3,636,364 shares of comiman stock upon the
closing of a our 2004 1PO, The mumiber of sharcs issued upon conversion was detenmingd by dividing she principal of the noie
by 53,30, wliich wias subject 1o adjusinci for iy subsequent recapitilizations, stock combiisitions, sioeck dividends. of siock

aplils.
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The contingenily convertible debt included an embedded conversion feature, in the event that we are sold which
requires bifarcation and separate accounting as a denivative. This derivative was recorded at its fair value, with changes in fair
vithue recognized as other income or expense over the period it is outstanding. The fair value of this derivative since inception
has been immaterial,

5BI Holdings, Inc. (o related pariv), the hodder of the notes and one of our sharcholders, received payment for
mkerest on the unsecured promissory notes of S0, 54200000, and 563,000 n the vears ended December 21, 2003, 2002, and
20, respectively.

Marte 10, Income Taxes

As of Deceniber 31, 2003, we had nio nel operating loss (“NOL™) carrviorwards and research and developiment lax
credit carmylorwands of 57 14,0600, The carryforwards are available o offser Mumre @ax liabilities. The research and development
tux credils expire betwesn 2022 o 2033,

Deferred tax wssels anse from cemporary differences between financinl and 1ax reporiing. We will establish a
valetion allowmnce if either il is more Bikely than not that the defemed tax asses will expine before we are able 1o realize their
benelits or the future deductibility is uncertain. Pemodically, the valuation allownnee s reviewed and adjusted based on
muamagernent’s assessnents the realizability of deferred tax assets. During the year ended Deceniber 31 2011, we reduced our
vithuztion allowance 1o sero because we believe that it is more likely than nod that our defemed tax assers will be realized. A
reduction in the valuation allowance of $2.632,000 is reflected as o reduction to income lox expense.

Deferred mx asse12 are as follows (in thousandsy:

bevember 3,
1018 FIE
Deferred tix assels:
MNel operaning loss carmyforwards 5 —_ 5 L1
Research and development {R& D) tax credil cammyforwands 714 1625
Dhefierred reveiwe — GED
Compensiation 1.077 KRG
Dreferred renl (J1] 1492
Chher 1ax eredits a3 65
Property and cquipment 124 14
Unrealized gain [ =
Totl defemed tax asset m m
Hﬂw’!ﬂ i —_——
Current deferred tix assel 3 1L1l4 8 770
Long-term deferred tax nssel 1,280 3805
5 234 8 4 whE

For the years ended December 20, 2002 and 200 1, we had mxable income that was offset by the atilization of e
NOL,
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The components of the tax expense (benefith arc as follows (in thousands);

Vears Endod Becomber 10,
3 o i
Federal:
Current 5 575 % 6% S 152
Defierred 1295 2478 (2,633)
2ETO 2647 2 ARD)
State:
Cument 5 5 —_ 5 —_
Defierred (21 - —
I3 —_ —
Toual § 28R} § 2647 5 (2,480

The tux benefit associated with the utilization of loss carrylorwands was 811 (66, 52,979 000, and 51,064, (08 in
the vears ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively,

The reconciliation of the statusory Federal mcome tax rate 1o our effective Income ik rate s as follows:

Vears Ended December 3,

2013 FITH 2011
Starutory mie 34000 e 0%
Reduction of the valuation allowaiwe — — (54,13
Unlizion of loss carrylorwards - — (48.1)
Loas carrylorward adjustiesil 1.7 -_ —
(hher, net X 4K 32
EMfective 1ax rale 30.8% I5.8% (65,007

We file our incoine 1ax retum in e US, federal furisdiction. We are i longer subject o ULS. federal 1ax
examimations by lax autharitics for the veurs before 2008, However, the liternal Revenue Service (“IRS™) could adjust certain
univised tax attiibutes cirmed forward i lax veurs prior o 2008,

We recogmize the tix benefit fromm an uncertann tax position only i it 5 more likely than oot that the 1ax position will
be sustained on examination by the taxing authoritses. based on the technical merits of the position, The tx benefits recognized
in the financial statements from such a posibon are measured based on the langest benefit that Jas a greater than 50 likelihood
of being realized upon wliimate setilement. However, ibere are no maierial unrecognized iax benefiis as of December 31, 20013,
2002, amd 2001, Fusthenmore, we do ol antcipale any signi ficant changes in our unrecognized tax benelis over the next 12
months

We recognize mterest wnd penabiics related 1o our labilitses for unceriinm Gk posiions 1 IMeeng ax eXpenss.
Hewever, during the years ended December 31, 20035, 2002, and 20411, we did not have any acerued interest or penaltics
assocmted with any uarccognized tax benefits,

2012 deferved s assets do not inclede B&D credits generated for 2002, The American Taxpayer Reliel Act of 2002
was signed into bw on Jamenry 3, 2003, which retreactively exiended the R&D Credit back o Jamuary 1, 2002, The elfect of
tax begislaion is uken into account in the imerim period in which the law was enacted, Therefore, the 2012 RED eredits are
ned containgd in the deferred rax assets as of December 31, 2002, bat are included in the deferred tax assets as of December 31,
203,

Note 11, Commitmen ts

Feases
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We lease labormtory and corporate office space under noncancelable operating leases expinng in 2015, The lease
aprecment for the lnboratory facility includes one three-year rencwal aption, and the lease for the comporaie office mehades ane
three-year renewal option, Lease incentives ane recognized as defemed rent liabilitics mnd imortized 1o rem cxpense over the
term of the lease, Minimum rent payments under aperiting leases are recognized on a siraighi-line basis over the tenm of the
lease, including any periods of free rent and reduced rent.

Fubure mimmum lease payvments under noncancelable operating leases (with initial or renmining lease lerms in
ewcess of one year) as of December 31, 2003 are a8 follows:

204 5 10101
2015 152051
Totl mininmim lease payments §  LOG2152

Rent expense was S908 000, S840 (00, and $958 000, respectively, i the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012,
wnd 200 1, respectively.

Credit Facility

We numtaned a 85,000,000 fne of credit for working copital pursum 10 revolving line of credit note (the “Line of
Credin™). Imerest on the Line of Credit accmed, and was due, monthby either at (1) at a Nuctuating rate per annum determined
by the bank to be cne and twenty live hundredihis pereent (1.25%5) above the Daily One Month LIBOR Rate in effect from tme
to fime, o7 (10 ot a fxed e per anmam determimed by the bank 1o be one and twenty five hundredihs percent | 1,25%) above
LIBOK i elfest an the lirst day of the apphicable Fixed Rate Term. No ansmnis were owstandmg under the Gility as of
December 31, 2002, The ling of credit was secured by our restncied investment balances of approxinutely 3, 500,000 s of
Decamber 31, 2012, In December 2003, we elected to iemimate the Line of Credit. As a resuli, the S5.800,000 of investments
ire no longer restricted,

Nute 12, Shurcholders’ Equity
Comprn Stock

W b G0, U0 AN shares of comimon stock authoraed without par value as of December 21, 2003,
Carrvertible Preferred Stock

We had 52,442 514 shares of prefermed stock auhorized withou par value, as of December 31, 2013, All
outstanding preferred siock converied 1o conmmon siock in connectien witl our IPO in February 13, 2004, The preferred siock
was issuatdle in one or more series, cach with such desigmations, rights, qualifications, lmititkons, and restrictions as the Board

iy determing at the tme of issuance, We had designmed 2,734 334; 17 880,908 and 31,818,182 shares as Series A, Series B,
wnd Series C preferred stock, respectively, with the following 1erms:

€ anversiog

Each share of Series A and B prefemed sieck was convertible a1 any tmme afler Bsamnee ol the option of the boldes
nto sach number of common stock shanes as is determined by dividing 50025 by (e conversion price in elTect at the time of
eonversion. The orginnl conversion price of 0,75 would be adiusted for any sibsequent necapitalizations, stock combinations,
siock dividends, or siock splis.

Each share of Series C preferred stock was convenible at any time after issuance ai the option of ihe kolder into
such number of comman stock shares as is deermaned by dividing 31,10 by the conversion price in effect at the time of
conversion. The original conversion price of 53,30 would be adjusied Tor any subsequent recapiializntions, stock combinations,
stock dividends, or stock spliis.

Shares of Series A, B, and C prefered siock would asutomatically convent into sharcs of common stock upen the
closing of a firm commutment onderwrillen public offening a1 a price of not less than 53,50 per share and aggregate net
proceeds of not less than S35 000,004,

Ligpivicharion
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I the evemt of any liquidation, disselution, winding-up of our company, sale of our company or substantially all of
our assels, or upon a ceriain merger or consolidation ransaction, the holders of Series A and B preferred stock were entitled 1o
receive, prior and i preference o any distribution of any of our asseis o the holders of commeon stock. the imount of 5075 per
share plus an amount equal 10 all declared but unpaid dividends of the Series A and B preferred stock. The holders of Series C
preferred stock were entitled 10 reccive, prior and in preference 1o any distribution of any of our asscts 1o the holders of
comanon slock, (e amsount of 1,10 per share, plus an amown equal o all declared, but unpaid dividends of the Series C
preferred siock,

IT the assets available for distnbution among the holders of Senies A, B, and T preferred stock and promissory noles
were msufficiend to permit the payment 10 such holders of their respective liquidation preference. then the entire assets and
surplus funds then remmaining begally available for disinbution would be distributed ratably mnong the holders of Series A, B,
imd C preferred stock amd promissory neles in proportion to the preferentinl amount each holder would ethervise be entitled to
receive. Upon completion of required prefereniil disinbutions, any of our remaining assels available for distribuison would be
distributed among the holders of common stock.

Ihrviclends

The holders of Senes A, B, mnd C preferred stock were entitled 10 receive dividends when and as declared by the
Board in preference o any declaranon or payment of any dividend on our conimen stock. Such dividends were not cumulstive.

Firbing

Each share of Series A, B, and C preferred stock had one vote for cach full share of commeon stock into which its
respective shares of prefermed siock could be converted on the recard date for the vole. We were fedquired 10 receive ai
affimmtive vobe or writlen consent from a mjority of the holders of Series A, B, or C preferred stock, voling as a separale
class, for any change m Ui innnber of auilwnsed prefemed shares; changes in ihe preferaices, righis, prvikeges, or powers of
the preferred sharcholders; or sale, merger, or conzofidation in which the holders of our capital stock retain less than 30%5 of the
vodmnig power after the iransaction.

Changes in Acewmulated (iver Comprelensive Loss i thousands):

Years Emided December N1,

2013 HH

Beginning balance 5 - 5 (0]
Current pereod other comprehensive gain (loss) (7 [
Ending baloince g (7} 8 —

The changes m acouwmnliied other comprehensive loss relite to unrcalized holding gains and losses in aviilable-for-
sale securings.

Noe 13, Stock-Based Compensation
Ktack Option Plan

The Board has adopted and approved equity-based ingentive plans (ihe “Equity Plans™) which provide for the
sssuanee of noadqualified and incentive stock options o eimplovess, board members, and consultants 10 acqiine shares of
comamon stock, The Equity Plans also allow for the issuance of restricted stock, ahbough no restricied siock had been issusd
under the equity plans through December 31, 2013, The Board has peseeved 2, 120,055 shares of coimmon stock 10 be issued i
conpumction with the Equity Plans, The term ol each optian is ien vears. Equary awsnds o nonexeculive emplovees gencrally
viest and become exercisable over & four-vear pemod, with 25% vesting afler onie vear and /48 vesting each month thereatter.
Ecpuity awards 1o executives generally vest and become exercisable over a five-vear penod, with 20% vesting after one vear
e 160 vesting each momh thereafler. The option agreements include restrictions on the sale of shares acquined by the
exereg of ogions,

O Equity Plan siock opiton activity for the vears ended Diecember 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 is summarized as
Tollorws:
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Numbar of Opiion Wilghtnl Average
Share Arailshie Sharrs Earrelu Price sl Uiptias
For Cirani Chubslamiling Uplson Shares Exrreisalde

Balance st December 31, 20010 1,099 229 6897 S k) 354015
Increase in reserved shares R = —
Grunted (423 500y 423,500 5.22
Exercised — (3.00d0) 1.45
Forfeited O3, 342 (53423 4135
Expired 194834 (194514 255

Balance st December 31, 2001 1,265 905 T95.303 4131 288 DER
Granted (253, %{010) 253,900 967
Exercised — (5. 28K} 0.3
Forfeited 204,514 (204.534) 4.64
Expired 28,553 {28.553) 497

Balance st December 31, 2002 1,245 002 R1lEIR 591 ARG 440
Granted (110.250) 1102540 1652
Exercised —_ (302 1) (1N
Forfeited 106,517 (106.517) 919
Expired R7.404 (BT7.4064) 650

Balance m December 31, 2013 1,332,823 GHETE S 721 41209

The weighted average excrcise price of exercisable options o1 December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2011 was S4.64, 53,66,
amd 5286, respectively.

The totul intmnsic value of steck options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 was
SR07,0001, 547 (MK, med 59,0000, respecitively.

The aperegate intrinsic value of sieck options outstanding ar December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2011 was S10,787,000,
53,586,000, and $3,124,000, respectively.

The apererate intrinsic value of siock options exercisable at December 31, 2003, 200 2, il 2001 was §7.437 000,
S2.598,000, and 51,553,000, respectively.

The weighied average gramt diie fair value of stock options granted in 2013, 2002, and 2011 was S8.0%, §5.59, and
S3.25, respectively.

Information concerning owstanding and exercisable options a1 Decemiber 31, 2013 is swinmarised as follows:

Deecember M. 2003
Welghtel Average

Exewciee Number of Uhpiben Hemmining © ontraciunl

Prices Shares L {Yemrs) Ciptians Fuoerobaahls

§0.62 - 51.45 &3,000 286 83 000

$3.23-5519 314,594 L] 245039

824 - 822.69 208 8R4 8.73 23,460
(L ETH G0N 412,009

The weighted average remaiinlisg comractual lile of exercisable options o Decemiber 31, 2003, 2002, and 2011 was
6,95 years, 5.53 yoars, and 6,15 years, respectiviely.

As of December 31 2003, 2002, and 200 1, there was $1.470,000, 51,771,000, and 51,470,000, respectively, of ol
unrecopnized compensation cost related 1o nonvesied share-based compensation awards gramed under the Equiry Plans, Tha
cosl ks expecied o be recopnized over a welghied average period of 3.25, 3,58, and 3.71 vears. respectively. The wotal fair value
of shiges vested during the years eoded Decamber 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 was 3625 000, 5432 006, and 5422000,
respectively. We currently use authorized and unissued shares to satisly share award exereises.
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CEO Equity Agrevment

We have an employment agreement with Dr. Ryo Kubotn. Uniil the initin] public offering of our common stock, we
wre obligated pursuant to the emplovment agreement 1o grant stock options or allow Dr Kubota to purchase resiricted shares
ol common siack as ofien 45 necessary to mainiain Dr. Kubota's equily position in our company equal to at least 51% of our
issued and owistanding voting common stock on an as-comveried basis. The shares under these awards are subpect to repurchase
provisions thai lapse quarierly over 36 months from the date of grant. Ouistnding options and convertible secunitics are not
included in the calenlntion of D Kubota's equity position unless the options are exercised or the convertible securities are
converied into our capital stock. The purchase price of each stock gram could be made by an mterest-beanng full recourse
promissory note. Per the tenms of the employment agreement, we were obligated 1o periachcally pay Dr. Kuboin cash bonuses
consisting of principal and imterest amounts due under such promissory notes and additional taxes incurred by Dr. Kubota as a
result of receiving such bonuses, il any.

We treal this arrangement as share-based compensation. The employment agreement provides equity awuirds 1o
Dr. Kubota subpect to service and perfonmance conditions, The grant and measurement date 15 the date at which the Board
approves the prani of the oprions or sale of the restricied stock 10 Dy Kubow. The fair value of the awasd is established as the
current fair valse of our common stock, Compensation expense related 10 s armmgement 15 included o general and
admdnisirive expense.

Dumng the vears erded December 31, 2003, 2002, aued 200 1, tw connection with s1ock option exercises, we cmered
into a restricted stock paerchase agreement with Dr. Kubota for the issuance of 31,452, 5,504, and 2,278 shares, respectively, of
our common $ock 10 exchange for i lree-vear promissany nole in the tolal amoum of $456,000, S57 000, and 513,000,
respectively. Concurrent with the execulion of the agreement, we paid 4 bonus o Dr Kubota, which was in nirm used 10 repay
the promissony male and a2 compensation for mxes associated with the award. We recorded approximaiely STR6,000, S5 (00,
and S30,000, respectively, In compensaion expense in connection with the award. This amangemen rerminied concurrent
with the completion of our [PC i 2014,

MNote 14, #01(k) Retirement Plan

We sponser an employee retirement plan under Section 4010(k) of the lmemal Bevenue Code of 1956, as amended.
All enplovees who meet minimon eligibility requivements are eligible o participate in the phn. To date, we lave not mached
eimngloyee contributions nade o the plan.

Note 15, Related-Pariy Transsciions

Peter Kresel, MLBLA,, o membser of the Board, received payment from us for consulling services and resmsburscmen
of dircct expenses. Mr. Kresel's pavments for consulting services and expense reimburscnscnts were S288 000, 52 16,000, and
S217.000 during 2003, 2012, and 2011 respectively.

Csnka, sur collaborative parmer (5e¢ Note 5) and sole spurce of revenue for the vears ended December 31, 2013,
2002, aed 2001, owns 8.29% of our oustanding stock, while Cisuka Plamusceutical Faciory, Inc. owns 6.65% of owr
ouistanding stock. Together, these two catitics own 14, 94% of our outstanding stock as of December 31, 2003, These entitics
di not have representation on the Board,

SBI Holdings, Inc, (i related panyh, one of our sharcholders, is the holder for our contingently converible debi (sec
MNote N,

MNote 16, Strafegic Restructuring
In October 20013, we announced a plan 1o reduee expenses, including a workforce reduction, as a resull of (he

termsiniation of the Rebamipide Agreement. The plan resulied in g reduction in force of spproxioutely 353% of our ol
workforee, or approximatcly 3 cmployees, effective January |, 2014,
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As a result of this workforee reduction, we recorded a clange of S 1,060,000 in General and adminisimtive expense,
related to severance, other termination benefits, and outplacement services, in the year ending December 31, 2003, The
fellowing table summarizes the wilization of the restructuring Liahility (in thowsands

Severance amil Ciber

Trrinatiom Beoelids
Charges for the year ended December 31, 2013 5 1,004
Cash paymenis I8
Restructuring liabilities as of December 31, 2013 Bisks

Nute 17, Subsequent Events
Fnisial Public Offering
The unaudiied pro fonna balance sheet information below assunes the following ransaciions that were completed

subscquent to December 31, 2003 had ocourred on December 31, 201 3:

*  Om Febroary 13, 2014, we complesed our IPO whereby we sold 9,200,066 shares of comman stock at $17.72
per share and received nel proceeds of S 143, 100,000 {afier underwriting discounls and commissions and
estimited offering cosis, including those nod yet paid as of December 31, 20013),

= O February 13, 2004, the sulomalic comversaon of 512,000,000 of owstanding principal underhying a
comvertible mole that we issued 10 SB1 Holdimgs, [nc. in May 2006, which converied upon the completion of
our IPO into an aggregate of 3,636,364 shares of our common stock:

«  On Febrnury 13, 2014, the oustanding shares of conventible preferred stock automatically converied into an
aggregate of 10,813,867 shares of common stock upon the closing of our [PO;

= On February 13, 2004, we filed an amended and restated certificate of incorposation 1o autloriee |00, 00
shares of commeon stock:

Pro forma net proceeds. from our [P were detenmimed as follows (in thousands):

Giross procecds 5 163 00
Underwriting discounts and comimissions (13,5000
Estimated total offering costs subsequent 1o December 21, 2003 1 300)
Offering coss paid as of December 31, 2013 (5,500)
Pro fonma ne proceeds 5 143,100

The following rable summarizes certain actual balance sheet dita and pro forma balance sheet data o reflec e
wetivities refated 1o our 1PO poted abwve, as of December 31, 2003 (u thousandsy:

Pro formma
December 31, December 31,
2013 2003
Cash, cash equivalents and invesimens 5 12419 % 181019
Warking capital 19,412 169012
Tonal asses S4.048 197,148
Contingently convertible debt, relaied party (inchsding current portion) 12,000 =
Convenibie prefemed stock e -
Accumualpied deficit (3460 (34060
Tl sharchobders’ equity 5 3024 5 174,224

As of December 31, 20113, we had no payables guistanding 1o our underwriters in connection with gur [PO,
Effeciive upon ihe closing of our IPCY, 1,645 38 shares of common siock were reserved for future issuance umsder our 2014
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cquity incentive plan (2014 Plan), inchiding 1,345 58% sharcs of commen steck previously reserved for issuance under our
2044 equity incentive plan, that were added to the shares reserved under the 2014 Plun upon its effectivencss.
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Note 18, Quarterly Information {Unawdited)

The following tables set forih our unaudited quarierly statement of operations data for each of the last cight quaners
in the peried ended December 31, 2003, The unaudited quarerly stntement of operntions data below have been prepared en the
same basis a5 the audited financinl statements inchsded elsewhere in this Form 10-K and reflect all necessary ndjustments,
consisting only of normal recuming adjustiments, that we belicve are necessary for a fair statement of this information. The
resubls of historical quarters are not necessarily mdicative of the results of operations fior a full year or any future period:

March 31 Jume M Sepiember 10 Iecembier M
(lm thousands, except per share amoanes)
2013
Revenises lrom collaborations with & relaved pany $ 15980 % 11023 & 14.602 § 11.252
Nl income (loss) 3711 {20y 1,420 (E12)
Nel incoane (lossy anirbutable w comnon slarcholders 998 (5} 82 215
Basac net imcome per shane attributable 1o common
shareholders 5 D08 5 — § 004 5 (04125
Diluted net income per share atributable 1o commaon
sharcholders b1 s 8 — 5 [TVERE {04323
Nlarch 31 Jume M) mepbember 3@ Ikecember 31
{lm thomsanids, except per share amomnes)
2012
Revenes from collaborations with a relared pany % 9,590 5 0T 5 15581 & 11,283
Nel income ETk] 234 3,562 ]
el income anribuable w common sharchalders B4 63 955 19
Basic net income per share attribuiable 1o commsen
sharcholders 8 Dol s — 5 008 8 -—
Diliited net income per slane attribulable 1o conmmnod
sharcholders 1 ool s — & 008 5 —_
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Acucela Inc.
SEC
SEC
2010 11
2009 10
FASB
VSOE TPE
2010 FASB
2009 12 31
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20.42

2013 2013 12 31 7.147 7.147
2014 2037 12 31 15.315 15.315
2038 15 15
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Acucela Inc.
Acucela Inc. 2013 2012 12 31 2013 12 31
2013
2012 12 31 Acucela Inc. 2013 12 31

2014 28
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Acucelalnc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Acucelalnc. as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the
related statements of income, comprehensive income, shareholders equity, and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2013. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabl e assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on atest basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overal financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al materia respects, the financial
position of Acucelalnc. at December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2013, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

/SIErnst & Young LLP
Seattle, Washington, United States of America
March 28, 2014
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